
TOWN OF WEAVERVILLE 

Town Hall Council Chambers 
30 South Main Street 
Weaverville, NC 28787 

AGENDA 

March 18, 2019 
Public Hearing at 6:45pm 

Regular Meeting at 7:00 pm 
 

 Public comment will be permitted at the time of the discussion of the agenda items marked with an asterisk (*). The content and timing rules applicable 
to public comment at the opening of the Council Meeting shall also apply to comments on agenda items. Such public comment shall be permitted only 
after each of Town Council has been provided the opportunity to discuss the respective agenda item. 

    

  Pg 
# 

Presenter 

    

    

1. Public Hearing: Rezoning of Parcels on Red Cole Drive ........................................................ 1 Planning Director 

    

    

1. Call to Order ...........................................................................................................................  Mayor Root 

    

2. Approval/Adjustments to the Agenda ..................................................................................  Mayor Root 

    

3. Approval of Minutes ……………………………………………………………………………………..………............  Mayor Root 

 A. February 12, 2019 Town Council Special-Called Meeting ................................................. 
B. February 25, 2019 Town Council Special-Called Meeting ................................................. 

8 
12 

 

    

4. General Public Comments …........……………………………………………...…………………………..............  Mayor Root 

    

5. Consent Agenda .....................................................................................................................  Town Manager 

 A. Monthly Tax Report ........................................................................................................... 14  

 B. Tax Releases / Refunds ...................................................................................................... 16  

 C. Earth Day & Arbor Day Proclamations ............................................................................... 17  

 D. Comprehensive Land Use Plan Update ............................................................................. 20 Planning Director 

    

6. Town Manager’s Report ........................................................................................................ 22 Town Manager 

    

7. Discussion & Action Items   

 A. Proposed Legislation regarding Local ABC Boards * ......................................................... 32 Rob Chason 

 B. Dry Ridge Museum Presentation * ................................................................................... 35 Jan Lawrence 

 C. Action regarding Map Amendment on Red Cole Drive * .................................................. 36 Planning Director 

 D. Sale of Former Bus Garage * ............................................................................................. 44 Town Attorney 

 E. Discussion of Delegated Policies with Personnel Policy *.................................................. 53 Town Manager 

 F. Annexation Petition/Initial Zoning: Riverside Stump Dump Property Resolution *......... 56 Town Clerk 

 G. Quarterly Report – Public Works & Water Services ......................................................... 68 Public Works Dir. 

    

    

8. Adjournment ………………………………………………………......……………………………………………............  Mayor Root 

  



TOWN OF WEAVERVILLE 
TOWN COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 

PUBLIC HEARING 
MEETING DATE:  Monday, March 18, 2019  

SUBJECT: Proposed Rezoning – Red Cole Drive 

PRESENTER:   Planning Director 

ATTACHMENTS: Notice of Public Hearing; Rezoning Application; 
Recommendation of the Planning and Zoning Board; Staff 
Report 

  
DESCRIPTION/SUMMARY OF REQUEST:  

Tonight’s public hearing is being held on proposed zoning map amendment related to five 
parcels located adjacent to Red Cole Drive known commonly by the parcel identification 
numbers 9743-33-6380, 9743-33-8364, 9743-33-9113, 9743-43-0246, 9743-43-0162. The 
proposed amendment would convert these parcels from their current zoning of C-2 to R-3. 

Public notice of tonight’s public hearing has been provided as required by state statute and 
Town Code.  

Tonight’s public hearing offers an opportunity for the citizens of the Town of Weaverville 
to provide comments, both positive and negative, regarding the proposed rezoning. 

 

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED: 

Town Council is asked to hear from the public on these proposed amendments prior to 
taking any action during its regular Town Council meeting on March 18, 2019. 

1



 
 

 
 

NOTICE OF SPECIAL CALLED MEETING  
AND PUBLIC HEARING 

 
Public Notice is hereby given that the Town of Weaverville Town Council will hold a special called 
meeting and public hearing on Monday, March 18, 2019 at 6:45p.m. This meeting will occur within 
Council Chambers at Town Hall located at 30 South Main Street, Weaverville, NC to consider the 
following item: 
 
Proposed Zoning Map Amendment related to five contiguous parcels of land adjacent to Red Cole 
Drive known commonly by the parcel identification numbers 9743-33-6380, 9743-33-8364, 9743-
33-9113, 9743-43-0246, 9743-43-0162. The application calls for the rezoning of each property 
from C-2 to R-3.   
  
If you would like additional information or to review the content related to the Public Hearing you 
may contact Planning Director and Deputy Town Clerk James Eller at 828-484-7002 or 
jeller@weavervillenc.org. 
 
Publication Dates: 3/1/19 and 3/8/19 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

2

mailto:jeller@weavervillenc.org


3



Positive Recommendation

4



5



 

 

Town of Weaverville 
Planning and Zoning Board 

 
 

On Tuesday, March 5, 2019 the Planning and Zoning Board reviewed and unanimously recommended 
to Town Council a proposed rezoning from C-2 to R-3 of five parcels located adjacent to Red Cole Drive 
known commonly by the parcel identification numbers 9743-33-6380, 9743-33-8364, 9743-33-9113, 
9743-43-0246, 9743-43-0162. 
 
It has been found that the proposed rezoning is consistent with the Town’s Comprehensive Plan. The 
Planning and Zoning Board considers approval both reasonable and in the public interest due to the 
residential uses present, the desire of the property owner to further develop vacant parcels for 
residential purposes and finding that an adjacent parcel of land is zoned R-3 alleviating any concerns 
related to spot zoning. 
 
 
 
_______________________________________ 

Doug Theroux  
Chairman, Planning and Zoning Board  
 
 
_______________________________________ 
 
John Chase 
Acting Chairman of the Planning and Zoning Board on March 5, 2019 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

6



Town of Weaverville, North Carolina 
Staff Report: Proposed Rezoning of 
Parcels Located on Red Cole Drive 

Prepared February 2019 

Sources:  Town of Weaverville Code of Ordinances; Comprehensive Land Use Plan 

Page 1 of 1 

Zoning Analysis 

Currently two of the parcels subject to the proposed rezoning are being used for residential purposes 
within the C-2 zoning district. This creates a scenario where the current homes on site are being 
inhabited by a nonconforming use. As such, these uses cannot be enlarged in any way and new 
residential uses on the parcels which are currently uninhabited are expressly prohibited.  

The family has expressed a desire to continue the residential use of the inhabited parcels and 
experience a set of circumstances where the uninhabited parcels may be use for residential purposes. In 
order for this to occur, the proposed rezoning is necessary.  

Staff believes that the identified parcels at the end of Red Cole Drive may be ripe for a rezoning due to 
the following variables: accessed by a private dead end street; the condition of Red Cole Drive is not 
conducive to commercial traffic; the location of the intersection of Red Cole Drive and North Buncombe 
School Road is likely to not be eligible for signalization due to its proximity to the “five points” 
intersection; the nonconforming nature of the underlying residential uses will not permit the present 
use to be replaced and or expanded. 

Comprehensive Land Use Plan Compliance 

When considering compliance with the Town’s Comprehensive Land Use Plan (CLUP), often the analysis 
begins with a consultation of the future land use map (Figure 3-6 on page 3-5). Here it is found that this 
property exists in a gap between the defined areas shown for the future uses of Commercial and Rural. 
These gaps are intentional and are addressed within the CLUP on page 3-2 as follows: 

“When reviewing the map, you will see that there are gaps between defined areas, and that the defined 
areas do not necessarily follow property boundaries. This is purposeful given the uncertainties that exist 
on the ground that cannot be accounted for, and in recognition of the need for flexibility. And so, the 
boundaries and gaps should be viewed as flexible rather than lines in the sand, and the final decisions on 
transitional land use types in these areas should be left to the good judgement of the appointed and 
elected officials that are charged with establishing development policy and regulations in the Town.” 

Given the aforementioned statement, it is the opinion of staff that the proposed rezoning would not 
conflict with the Town’s CLUP. 

7



February 12, 2019 
Minutes of Joint Meeting of Town Council and 

Planning and Zoning Board 

 

Town of Weaverville 
Minutes 

 
Joint Meeting of Town Council and Planning and Zoning Board 

Tuesday, February 12, 2019 – Town Hall  
 

The Town Council and Planning and Zoning Board for the Town of Weaverville met for a Joint Meeting on Tuesday, 
February 12, 2019, at 6:00 p.m. in Council Chambers within Weaverville Town Hall at 30 South Main Street, 
Weaverville, North Carolina. 

Council members present: Mayor Al Root, Vice Mayor/Councilman Doug Jackson, Councilwoman Dottie Sherrill, 
Councilman Jeff McKenna, and Councilman Patrick Fitzsimmons. Councilman Andrew Nagle was absent.  

Planning and Zoning Board members present: Chairman Doug Theroux, Vice Chairman Gary Burge, Board Members: 
Catherine Cordell, Peter Stanz and Steve Warren, Alternate Board Members: John Chase and Tom Balestrieri 

Staff present: Town Manager Selena Coffey, Town Attorney Jennifer Jackson, and Town Planner James Eller. 

1. Call to Order  
Mayor Root called the meeting to order on behalf of Town Council at 6:00pm. 
Chairman Doug Theroux called the meeting to order on behalf of the Planning and Zoning Board at 6:00pm. 

 
2. Comprehensive Land Use Plan Update 

A. Review of Project Status and Timeline 
Town Attorney Jackson mentioned that she and the Town Planner Eller have attempted to keep Town Council and the 
Planning and Zoning Board up to date with where they were with the Comprehensive Land Use Plan. Right now, they 
are right on track with the timeline and the next step is to start the drafting phase for writing the narrative, which Mr. 
Eller has completed. Jackson noted that, with the adoption of the FY 2019-2020 Budget Calendar by Town Council at 
their last meeting, it appears that Town Council has been doubled booked. So it brings up the question as to whether 
Town Council should push its review out until the budget is adopted. This will allow the Planning and Zoning Board 
more time to review the plan and will just delay the approval of Town Council until August, instead of in June. 
Jackson presented an amended timeline (see attached) for Town Council’s consideration and by consensus of Town 
Council the project will proceed based on the amended timeline. 

B. Process for Town Council to Review Draft Plan 
Mayor Root mentioned that it might be helpful if Council members went to the Planning and Zoning Board meetings 
when they are reviewing the draft plan to bring themselves up to speed and to hear the board members comments.  
  
Councilman McKenna commented that the draft materials could be passed out earlier, so that Council can have an 
understanding of the substance of the material and then discuss any further pressing details at the meeting.  
 
C. Process for P&Z Board to Review Draft Plan 
Chairman Theroux commented that since we aren’t starting from scratch on the land use plan, he believes that the 
review of the comprehensive land use project can be presented all at once. If it were to be broken down into sections, 
it would take a lot more meetings. Board Member Steve Warren discussed how many sections each member would be 
responsible for if it were to be divided among the board members. It was agreed that the Planning and Zoning Board 
will look at this when the draft plan is presented to them for review. 

8



February 12, 2019 
Minutes of Joint Meeting of Town Council and 

Planning and Zoning Board 

 
D. Decisions regarding Public Input Strategy for Public Review of Draft Plan 
Town Attorney Jackson mentioned that Public Input strategy is really critical for these projects and when staff was 
going through this process for the Table of Uses, staff tried to get as much public awareness out to the public, so they 
could come and comment. Unfortunately, there weren’t a lot of comments or involvement received. Town Planner 
Eller noted that all required public notices were recorded, as well as sending out a press release, and staff even made 
yellow signs to grab the citizen’s attention. Still only one individual came out and commented at the public hearing.  
 
Vice Chairman Burge commented that his biggest concern is making sure that the public is aware about this draft 
plan, so public input can be gathered. 
 
Board member Cordell discussed possibly adding a survey to the water bills so that more data could be collected. 
There could be a bar code placed on the survey, so that the outside city limit customers could be separated from the 
inside city limit customers. 
 
Mayor Root mentioned that staff should reach out to the Homeowners Associations and churches to give them an 
abbreviated version, so that they are aware of what is going on and can schedule a meeting for any questions.  
 
Board member Peter Stanz commented on the surveys and asked what the end goal of the survey was, is it to gather 
information or data, inform citizens about the land use plan, or get good participation from the community.  
 
Alternate Board member John Chase also noted that it could be more harmful than helpful to have individuals answer 
a survey if they aren’t educated on the land use plan.  It might be more beneficial, if we researched how to inform the 
citizens about the land use plan.  

 
After lengthy discussion, consensus was made between Town Council and the Planning and Zoning Board to schedule 
two public input/ information meetings at various times, and to reach out to Homeowners’ Associations and churches 
about the material being presented, so that they can reach out to us to schedule a meeting with a representative for any 
questions they may have.  Consensus was reached to not send out a community survey but instead seek some public 
input from citizens attending the information meetings.  
 

3. Desired and Required Role of Planning and Zoning Board 
A. Review of Statutory Duties and Code-Imposed Duties of P&Z Board 
Town Attorney Jennifer Jackson gave a brief overview of the materials that were handed out to the boards on the 
agenda. The table on page 2, lists in general what the Planning and Zoning Board is charged with statutorily by North 
Carolina law and the ordinances that Town Council has put into place. The administration capacity of the Planning 
and Zoning Board is listed on page 3 along with the subdivision ordinances that the board does a lot with by 
reviewing both minor and major subdivisions. Lastly, the yellow part on the table, shows how the board has more of 
an advisory role in the zoning process.   
 
B. Experience of P&Z Board During Statutory and Code-Imposed Reviews 
Peter Stanz commented that after the last meeting on the subdivision, the Planning and Zoning board had been asked 
to consider zoning a property to be annexed as R-2, but the project was nowhere near the requirements of the Town’s 
R-2 district. He expressed confusion as to what the value of zoning is for the Town. Mayor Root mentioned that as far 
as the annexation process went, Council took some steps to allow the developer to be annexed into Town. However, 
the land had to have an underlining zoning attached to it for annexation. Council had a 3-2 vote in January against the 
annexation so no further steps were taken. 
 
Chairman Theroux mentioned that this is the same issue that came up on the Maple Trace development where they 
were given water allocations for annexation, and then Council found out how the plan of the development and denied 
the annexation. Down the road, these developments can still come back and ask to be annexed if they want too.   
 

9



February 12, 2019 
Minutes of Joint Meeting of Town Council and 

Planning and Zoning Board 

Gary Burge noted that he is thinking more about the next year or two into future and would like to get back to doing 
some planning, instead of just zoning and rezoning, so more mixed use districts and densities can be determined.  
 
Board Member Steve Warren noted that zoning should be subordinate to planning, since it is only one tool, along with 
subdivisions. It can be frustrating when you’re creating these entire non-conforming lots based on area regulations. He 
believes that we need to have more tools and resources available and would love to see a transitional district, less 
conditional zoning districts, and more tools to go to for development proposals. Plus, our ordinances have to support 
future plans.  
 
Board member Cordell commented that they try to be like a black and white board, where they have ordinances and a 
land use plan, and they are supposed to try to tie together whatever is presented to them.  If it doesn’t fit, then they 
have to find a way to make it fit and they never know if it will be approved by Council.  
 
Town Planner Eller noted that the Barkley Terrace development was the last annexation left that was combined with 
water allocation. 
 
Alternate member Tom Baliesteri commented that he has only been on the board for a short period of time, but looks 
forward to more meetings in the future on discussing planning issues to make this a more livable Town that we’re 
proud of.  
 
Alternate member John Chase stated that he has been on the board for a few years now and realizing how complex 
these issues are and the rapid growth occurring in Weaverville, but trying to digest everything and present concise 
information to Town Council is very intriguing and he enjoys the work.   
 
Chairman Theroux mentioned that establishing a Technical Review Committee for another set of eyes, instead of just 
Town Planner Eller might be valuable.  Eller has already started reaching out to the Public Works department and Fire 
Department to have them review the document before it goes to the Planning and Zoning Board.  
 
C. What information is Helpful to Town Council for Decision-Making 
Councilman McKenna mentioned that it would be beneficial if there was more communication between the two 
boards when it came to presenting the recommendations to Town Council. Especially since Town Council usually 
only has a limited amount of time to look over the whole packet. Councilman Fitzsimmons commented to put more 
information and any concerns in the recommendation letter for Council, since sometimes the packets can be quite 
large and it can be difficult to cover all the material. Mayor Root mentioned that if the letter is completed before the 
agenda is done, then it can be circulated to Town Council before to allow more time. 
 
D. Balance Between Planning and Administrative Review 
Steve Warren asked Mr. Eller how he feels about the Planning and Zoning Board looking over his shoulder on these 
issues. Town Planner Eller mentioned that the planning review adds an incredible amount of time to the process, when 
he, together with the Fire Department and Public Works Department, can sit down and review a project in about 15 
minutes. He expressed frustration that the actual process takes about three months when the work can be done in less 
than a day. 
 
Town Attorney Jackson commented that there are some inefficiencies that have grown within the subdivision 
ordinance, especially with the way it is written now with having to be approved by Town Council. There are already 
two layers of review, before it gets to Council on the three different plans: concept plan, preliminary plan and final 
plan. Mayor Root noted that they are open to other options, but were informed by staffs predecessor’s that this was the 
process needed for approval.  
  
E. New and Existing Zoning Districts for Staff/P&Z to study 
Consensus was made that the following districts should be looked at by staff and the Planning and Zoning Board: 
high-density single family residential district, office/institutional district, mixed use district, transitional district and 
the C-1 Central Business District. 

10



February 12, 2019 
Minutes of Joint Meeting of Town Council and 

Planning and Zoning Board 

 
Board member Steve Warren mentioned that the Board of Adjustments also develops the land use patterns, so it isn’t 
completed just by these two groups. Some of their actions do affect us, especially like the Creekside development in 
an I-1 zoning district. 
 
F. Geographic Areas for Staff/ P&Z to Study 
Town Attorney Jennifer Jackson mentioned some specific geographic areas that should be looked at further, which 
were mentioned on page 5. These areas include the central business area, the north main street/five points area, 
Monticello corridor, and the Reems creek road corridor. We need to be more proactive and ensure that the central 
business district remains thriving, enjoyable area.  

 
Board member Peter Stanz mentioned an idea to have another professional in Economic Development and Planning 
look over our plans. His reasoning was that it might be beneficial since the Planning and Zoning Board members are 
amateurs and it might help with the time constraints that Town Planner Eller is under. 

 
4. Adjournment. 

Vice Mayor/Councilman Jackson made the motion to adjourn the Town Council meeting; Councilman Fitzsimmons 
seconded and all of Town Council voted to adjourn the Council’s meeting at 8:00 p.m. 

Board member Cordell made the motion to adjourn the meeting of the Planning and Zoning Board; Board member 
Stanz seconded and all Board members voted to adjourn the Board’s meeting at 8:00 p.m. 

 

__________________________________________ 
DEREK K. HUNINGHAKE, Town Clerk 

 

 

 

 

11



 

 
Page 1 of 2  February 25, 2019 
  Town Council Special-Called Meeting Minutes 
 

                       
                        MINUTES 
 

Town of Weaverville    Town Council Special Called Meeting 
State of North Carolina Monday, February 25, 2019 
 
The Town Council for the Town of Weaverville met for a Special-Called meeting on Monday, February 
25, 2019, at 6:45 p.m. in Council Chambers within Weaverville Town Hall at 30 South Main Street, 
Weaverville, North Carolina. 
 
Council members present were: Mayor Root, Vice Mayor/Councilman Doug Jackson, Councilwoman 
Dottie Sherrill, Councilman Andrew Nagle, Councilman Patrick Fitzsimmons and Councilman Jeff 
McKenna.  
 
Staff present was: Town Manager Selena Coffey, Town Attorney Jennifer Jackson, Town Clerk Derek 
Huninghake, Finance Officer Tonya Dozier, Police Chief Ron Davis, Fire Chief Ted Williams, Town 
Planner James Eller, Water Treatment Plant Supervisor Trent Duncan and Public Works Director Dale 
Pennell. 
 
1. Call to Order 

Mayor Al Root called the meeting to order at 6:45 p.m. 
 

2. Public Hearing: Code Amendments for Multi-Family Development 
Mayor Root opened the Public Hearing. 

 
Town Planner James Eller mentioned that before Town Council are the proposed code amendments 
for multi-family developments within R-3 and R-12 zoning districts. Staff has crafted a set of 
language that has been vetted by the Planning and Zoning Board that will transition the need to 
apply for a conditional zoning district for multifamily developments within these two districts to 
multifamily developments being permitted with standards. The proposed amendments will also make 
it clear that for all uses that are permitted with standards other general regulations within the zoning 
ordinance will continue to apply unless the specific standards provide otherwise. The standards 
related to multifamily development within the R-3 and R-12 zoning districts include specific 
standards on exterior lighting, garbage receptacles and a maximum number of 24 units within an 
individual building.  
 
Town Planner Eller noted that this Public Hearing has been duly advertised and these regulations 
come before Town Council with unanimous approval from the Planning and Zoning Board which 
found that the amendments were consistent with the Comprehensive Land Use Plan and were 
reasonable and in the public’s interest.  

 

12



 

 
Page 2 of 2  February 25, 2019 
  Town Council Special-Called Meeting Minutes 
 

3. Public Comment 
Thomas Veasey, 69 Lakeshore Drive, commented that he supports changing the zoning in districts, 
R-3 and R-12. 
 

4. Adjournment 
Vice Mayor/Councilman Jackson made the motion to close the public hearing and adjourn the 
special called meeting; Councilwoman Sherrill seconded and all voted in favor of closing the public 
hearing and adjourning the meeting at 6:50 pm. 

 
 
 
__________________________________________ 
        Derek K. Huninghake, Town Clerk 

13



TOWN OF WEAVERVILLE 
TOWN COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 

 

MEETING DATE:  March 18, 2019   

SUBJECT: Monthly Tax Report 

PRESENTER:  Tax Collector 

ATTACHMENTS: Monthly Tax Report 
  
 
DESCRIPTION/SUMMARY OF REQUEST:  

The Town Tax Collector provides the following monthly tax report as of             
March 12, 2019. This report is provided for information only.  

No action is requested or required. 

 

 

 

  

14



3/12/2019
Real Property: 750,820,030        
Real Property Discoveries: 1,279,000             

Total Real Property:  752,099,030        
Personal: 54,787,228           
Personal Discoveries: 30,290,632           

Total Personal: 85,077,860           
Public Utilities: 4,952,725             
Exemption: (10,663,470)         
Releases: (1,056,906)           
Total Tax Value 830,409,239        

Tax Levy @.38 cents per $100
Real Property: 2,857,976             
Personal Property: 323,296                
Public Utilities: 18,820                  
Less Under $5 Adjustment (57)                         
Total Public Utilities: 18,763                  
Exemption: (40,521)                 
Releases: (4,016)                   
Total Levy (Total Billed) 3,155,498             

Total Current Year Collections 3,060,810.29
% Collected 97.00%

Total Left to be Collected: 94,688                  

Prior Years Paid 18

Town of Weaverville
MONTHLY TAX REPORT

FY 2018-19

15



TOWN OF WEAVERVILLE 
TOWN COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 

 

MEETING DATE:  March 18, 2019   

SUBJECT: Tax Release 

PRESENTER:  Tax Collector 

ATTACHMENTS: None 
 
  
DESCRIPTION/SUMMARY OF REQUEST:  

Town Council is asked to approve a tax release for the 2018 real property tax bill on 
property located at 23 Bankstown Road owned by Jeffrey Lynn Banks and which 
bears Buncombe County Parcel Identification Number 9742-13-0984.  The 
requested release is for $26,100 in value and $99.18 from the 2018 tax levy and is 
due to a tax exemption approved by Buncombe County. 

 

TOWN COUNCIL ACTION: 

Town Council is requested to approved the above-described release. This action 
could be in the form of the following motion:  

I move to approve the release of $26,100 in value from the real property 
owned by Jeffrey Lynn Banks bearing Buncombe County Parcel 
Identification Number 9742-13-0984, so that $99.18 can be released from 
the 2018 levy. 

16



TOWN	OF	WEAVERVILLE	

TOWN	COUNCIL	AGENDA	ITEM	

Date	of	Meeting: March 18, 2019 

Subject: Proclamations Recognizing Earth	Day and Arbor	Day	

Presenter:	 	 Town Manager 

Attachments:	 	 Earth Day Proclamation and Arbor Day Proclamation  

Description:	

Attached please find proclamations recognizing Earth Day on Monday, April 22, 2019 and 

Arbor Day on Friday, April 26, 2019. 

Council	Action	Requested:	

The Town Manager recommends approval of both proclamations. 

17



TOWN OF WEAVERVILLE 
EARTH DAY 2019 PROCLAMATION 

WHEREAS, on April 22, 1970, millions of people took to the streets to protect the 
negative impacts of 150 years of industrial development and, since then, millions of people 
have celebrated Earth Day in order to increase the awareness among people of the issues 
affecting the environment in which we live; and 

WHEREAS, the Town of Weaverville wishes to join all of the other environmentally-
minded jurisdictions around the world celebrating Earth Day; and 

WHEREAS, for 2019 the Earth Day Network has engaged in a “Protect our Species” 
campaign in order to educate and raise awareness about the accelerating extinction of 
millions of species of wildlife and the causes and consequences of that extinction; and 

WHEREAS, the Town recognizes the benefit of promoting a global conservation ethic 
and garnering support for the protection of wildlife; 

WHEREAS, the Town recognizes that the use of plastics is a major contributor to 
landfill expansion and oceanic and other environmental pollution and contributes to injury 
and illness in several wildlife species;  

NOW, THEREFORE, the Town of Weaverville proclaims Monday, April 22, 2019, as 
Earth Day and encourages all residents to join the Town in celebrating the earth, and 
promoting the protection of all of its wildlife species, and, to that end, encourages local 
businesses and residents to institute voluntary measures to reduce the amount of plastic 
they use by finding and using alternative materials. 

THIS the 18th day of March, 2019. 

_______________________________________________ 
ALLAN P. ROOT, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

_______________________________________________ 
DEREK HUNINGHAKE, Town Clerk 

18



Whereas, In 1872, J. Sterling Morton proposed to the Nebraska Board of  

Agriculture that a special day be set aside for the planting of trees, 

and 

Whereas, this holiday, called Arbor Day, was first observed with the planting of more 

than a million trees in Nebraska, and  

Whereas, Arbor Day is now observed throughout the nation and the world, and 

Whereas, trees can reduce the erosion of our precious topsoil by wind and 

water, cut heating and cooling costs, moderate the temperature, clean the air, 

produce life-giving oxygen, and provide habitat for wildlife, and 

Whereas, trees are a renewable resource giving us paper, wood for our homes, 

fuel for our fires and countless other wood products, and 

Whereas, trees in our city increase property values, enhance the economic vitality of 

business areas, and beautify our community, and 

Whereas, trees, wherever they are planted, are a source of joy and spiritual 

renewal. 

Now, Therefore, I, , Mayor of the Town of,

do hereby proclaim  , as 

In the Town of , and I urge all 

citizens to celebrate Arbor Day and to support efforts to protect 

our trees and woodlands, and 

Further, I urge all citizens to plant trees to gladden the heart and promote the well-being 

of this and future generations. 

Dated this  day of 

Mayor 

19



TOWN OF WEAVERVILLE 
TOWN COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 

 

MEETING DATE:  March 18, 2019  

SUBJECT: Comprehensive Land Use Plan Project – Staff Update  

PRESENTER:  Planning Director/Town Attorney 

ATTACHMENTS: Land Use Information/Input Session Flyer 
  
 
DESCRIPTION/SUMMARY OF REQUEST:  

Staff wants to remind the Mayor and Town Council and the citizens of Weaverville 
that Town staff will be hosting Land Use Information and Public Input Sessions on 
Thursday, March 21st from noon to 3pm and on Thursday, March 26th from 5pm to 8 
pm. Staff will also be available during the month of April to make presentations to 
organized groups upon request. 

 

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED: 

Town Council’s continued help in distributing this information is appreciated. 

20



INFORMATION SESSIONS

LAND USE

Planning Department
828-484-7002

TOWN OF WEAVERVILLE
Contact the Town for more information or to schedule:

ORGANIZED GROUPS CAN REQUEST AN
   INFORMATION/INPUT SESSION FOR APRIL

AND WE WILL COME TO YOU

subdivisions

growth

residential

commercial
regional

maps

demographics

annexation

zoning
sidewalksstreets

industrial

developmentfuture

survey &

water

AND PUBLIC INPUT ON

local
Weaverville, NC

walkability

THURS MARCH 21 - 12 pm to 3 pm
TUES MARCH 26 - 5 pm to 8 pm
Community Room of Town Hall
30 South Main Street, Weaverville, NC

21



 

Town	of	Weaverville,	North	Carolina	
	

Town	Manager’s	Report	

Selena D. Coffey, MPA, ICMA-CM 

 

       

March	2019	

A. Projects	in	the	Main	Street	Nature	Park: Our Public Works Department is very 
busy working on several significant projects in the Nature Park: 

 
1) Stairs	from	Municipal	Parking	Lot:	As you are aware, the stairs from the 

municipal parking lot to the Nature Park have been in need of improvement 
for some time. Thanks to our Public Works Department, we will be seeing a 
drastic improvement. Please see the following photos: 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

2) Stage: Another significant project that Public Works is undertaking is the 
construction of an outdoor stage at the Nature Park. This stage, which will be 
used for the Town’s summer music series, will have electricity connected, but 
there will have no other utilities.  
 

	
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Current stairs  New stairs 

Comparable type of stage to be constructed 

22



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

B. Strategic	Plan	Quarterly	Report:		Attached you will find the first quarterly report 
on the 2018-2021 Strategic Plan as was adopted by Town Council. I will note 
highlights from the report during the upcoming meeting. 
 

C. Shred	Day:		I wish to thank Finance Director Tonya Dozier on coordinating with the 
State Employees Credit Union to plan a Shred Day for the Town’s residents on May 
11 from 9am-12pm. 
 
 

Location for stage 

23



Town of Weaverville 2018-2021 Strategic Plan 
Quarterly Report:  March 2019 

 

1 
 

Goal 1: To provide town services to meet the needs of the community. 

 
Objectives (followed by Action Steps) Responsibility Timeframe Status 
    
A. Develop consensus on water and annexation 

growth and develop policies consistent with that 
consensus. 

Town Council  
Planning Director 

Jan. 2019 • Town Council consensus 
on 11/13/18 and 1/8/19 
was to make decisions on 
a case by case basis as 
opposed to adopting a 
firm policy in this regard. 

1) Develop policy or procedures to guide Town 
Council in approving water allocations outside 
of Town limits. 

Town Council  
Public Works Director 

Nov. 2018 
 

• See above. 

2) Consider the development of a formal 
voluntary annexation program. 

Planning Director  
Town Council 

Nov. 2018 
 

• See above. 

B. Reexamine Asheville Redefines Transit to consider 
re-establishment of bus route given new 
residential development within the Town. 

Councilman McKenna  
Town Council 

 

Year 2021 • Not yet formally 
addressed. 

C. Enhance the Town’s outreach to educate the public 
about the Town’s services. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Town Staff 
 

Ongoing 
 

• Staff has strongly 
marketed the Town’s e-
newsletter in order to 
increase public awareness 
of Town services, 
functions and events. This 
has resulted in a 38% 
increase in the number of 
subscribers since January 
2019. The Town now has 
587 subscribers. 

    

24



Town of Weaverville 2018-2021 Strategic Plan 
Quarterly Report:  March 2019 

 

2 
 

1) Continue the Citizens Academy. Town Manager  
Department Heads 

Ongoing • The 2019 Citizens 
Academy was cancelled 
due to a lack of enough 
participants. This will 
resume for the 2020 
Academy. 

2) Continue fire prevention programs and 
participation in school events such as field 
days and career days. 

Fire Chief  
Fire Department 

Ongoing • Weaverville Fire 
Department regularly 
participates in school 
functions upon request. 

3) Continue community oriented policing 
programs, Cops for Kids, school programs, 
crime prevention program, etc. 

Police Chief  
Police Department 

 

Ongoing 

 

• Weaverville Police 
Department, upon hiring 
the new School Resource 
Officer, has been 
significantly more 
involved in school 
programs. 

4) Continue public education regarding services 
provided by the Public Works Department. 

Public Works Director 
 Public Works Department  

Water Superintendent 

Ongoing • The Town’s Public Works 
Department provides a 
public service 
announcement or article 
promoting their services 
for each month’s e-
newsletter. 

D. Recognize the needs of each Town department in 
serving an ever-changing and growing 
population. 

Town Council  
Town Manager  

Department Heads 

FY 2019; 
Ongoing 

 

• To be addressed during 
budget deliberations. 

1) Budget adequately to meet service demands 
(i.e. personnel, equipment, etc.) 

 

Town Manager  
Department Heads  

Town Council 

Annually 
 
 

• To be addressed during 
budget deliberations. 

2) Maintain and update the capital 
improvements plan. 

Town Manager  
Department Heads 

Annually 
 

• To be addressed during 
budget deliberations. 

    

25



Town of Weaverville 2018-2021 Strategic Plan 
Quarterly Report:  March 2019 

 

3 
 

3) Address performance objectives as they 
correlate to the Town vision and mission 

Town Manager  
Department Heads 

Annually • To be addressed during 
budget deliberations. 

4) Maintain Town facilities and equipment Town Manager  
Department Heads 

Ongoing • To be addressed during 
budget deliberations. 

    

Goal 2:  To improve regional collaboration. 

 

Objectives (followed by Action Steps) Responsibility Timeframe Status 
    

A. Strengthen relationship with the Asheville- 
Buncombe Economic Development Coalition 
and other economic development 
organizations. 

Town Manager  
Town Council 

Ongoing • Town Manager has 
reached out to Clark 
Duncan and plans to meet 
with him in the near 
future. 

B. Recognize water as a regional resource and 
identify regional jurisdictions that wish to 
partner in water production, sale and 
distribution. 

Town Council  
Town Manager 

Public Works Director  
Water Superintendent 

Ongoing • Town staff continues to 
have conversations with 
Mars Hill in this regard. 

C. Consistent involvement and collaboration with 
neighboring and regional jurisdictions in 
functional areas, such as police, fire, water 
resources, etc. 

Town Council  
Town Manager  

Department Heads 
 

Ongoing 
 
 

• Town staff meets 
regularly with 
neighboring and regional 
counterparts to 
collaborate on issues. 

1) Updates from department heads 
quarterly regarding regional efforts 
impacting the Town. 

Department Heads 
 

Quarterly 
 

• Department heads 
continue to provide 
quarterly reports during 
Town Council meetings. 

2) Updates from the manager subsequent to 
manager meetings regarding regional 
efforts with potential impacts on the 
Town. 

Town Manager 
 

Quarterly 
 

 

• Updates provided 
monthly or as 
appropriate. 

    

26



Town of Weaverville 2018-2021 Strategic Plan 
Quarterly Report:  March 2019 

 

4 
 

3) Updates from the Mayor regarding 
regional efforts. 

Mayor 
 

Monthly 
 

• Updates provided as 
appropriate. 

D. Distribute information regarding regional 
programs, services and resources available 
to Town citizens. 

Town’s MSD Representative 
Town’s MPO Representative 

Mayor 
Town Manager 

Ongoing • Ongoing activities and 
services included within 
the Town’s outreach 
activities. 

    

Goal 3:  To maximize benefit to the Town in land use planning efforts. 

    
Objectives (followed by Action Steps) Responsibility Timeframe Status 
    

A. Development of tools to encourage 
balanced residential economic 
development. 

Town Council  
Planning Director 

Year 2019 • Staff has presented 
information on this topic 
on 11/13/18 and 1/8/19. 

1) Revise Subdivision Ordinance to establish 
criteria and streamline subdivision 
approval process. 

Planning Director  
Planning & Zoning Board 

 

Jan. 2019 
 

• Town Council consensus 
was achieved on 2/12/19 
for staff and the Planning 
& Zoning Board to 
prioritize the revision of 
the Subdivision 
Ordinance. 

2) Update economic development goals for 
the Town. 

 
 

Mayor Root   
Vice‐Mayor Jackson 

Economic Development Advisory 
Committee 

Feb. 2019 
 
 

• To be addressed. 

B. Update the Town’s Comprehensive Land 
Use Plan (CLUP). 

Planning Director  
Town Council 

June 2019 
 

• In progress with the 
anticipated completion 
date of August 2019. 

1) Determine whether plan will be 
updated internally or externally. 

Town Council Sept. 2018 • Completed. 
• Town Council approved 

staff to complete the plan 
internally. 

    

27



Town of Weaverville 2018-2021 Strategic Plan 
Quarterly Report:  March 2019 

 

5 
 

2) Complete update of the plan. Planning Director June 2019 • Staff has updated Town 
Council on the progress of 
CLUP monthly. 

3) Implement plan. 
 

Town Council  
Planning Director 

 Town Manager 

July 2019 

 

• To be implemented upon 
completion and approval 
by Town Council. 

C. Investigate options for a geographic information 
system. 

Town Manager  
Planning Director 

March 2019 
 

• Staff has determined that 
it is most appropriate and 
cost-effective to work 
with Buncombe County to 
add a layer for the Town’s 
use as opposed to 
purchasing its own 
system. 

1) Coordinate with Buncombe County to add 
the Town layer to County GIS. 

Planning Director 
 

Feb. 2019 • Staff is working with 
Buncombe County staff to 
add the necessary layers. 

2) Assess previous mapping efforts, software 
and equipment. 

Planning Director  
Town Manager 

Feb. 2019 • See above. 

    

Goal 4: To promote a successful downtown. 

    
Objectives (followed by Action Steps) Responsibility Timeframe Status 

    
A. Consider a zoning district to serve as a 

transition between residential and 
commercial districts. 

 

Town Council  
Planning Director 

Planning & Zoning Board 
 

June 2019 
(CLUP) 

 

• Town Council’s consensus 
on 2/12/19 was to have 
staff and the Planning & 
Zoning Board to study this 
and provide 
recommendations to 
Council. 

    

28



Town of Weaverville 2018-2021 Strategic Plan 
Quarterly Report:  March 2019 

 

6 
 

B. Develop a mechanism to expand business 
opportunities along the central business 
district. 

Planning Director  
Town Council 

 

June 2019 
(CLUP) 

 

• Town Council’s consensus 
on 2/12/19 was to have 
staff and the Planning & 
Zoning Board to study this 
and provide 
recommendations to 
Council. 

• Further discussion by 
Town Council is necessary 
to completely achieve this 
objective. 

C. Consider mixed-use development regulation as a 
means of expanding development in areas with 
geographic limitations. 

Town Council  
Planning Director 

 

June 2019 
(CLUP) 

 

• Town Council’s consensus 
on 2/12/19 was to have 
staff and the Planning & 
Zoning Board to study this 
and provide 
recommendations to 
Council. 

D. Provide information resources 
marketing downtown and its 
walkability. 

Town Manager  
Town Staff 

 

April 2019 
 

• In progress 

1) Development of and distribution of 
Town walkability (sidewalks) and parks 
map. 

Public Works Director  
Town Manager 

 

April 2019 • To be addressed. 

2) Collaborate with the Weaverville Business 
Association (WBA) in marketing 
downtown restaurants, retail businesses, 
art studios, breweries and recreation 
amenities. 

Town Manager 
 

April 2019 

 

• To be addressed further. 

E. Research grant opportunities for all 
Town operations and projects, as well as 
for downtown efforts. 

Town Manager  
Department Heads 

 

Ongoing 
 

 

• Town Manager in the 
process of applying for a 
grant from the NCLM for 
the purchase of garbage 

29



Town of Weaverville 2018-2021 Strategic Plan 
Quarterly Report:  March 2019 

 

7 
 

toters to lower workers 
comp claims. 

• Police Chief has applied 
for monetary match of 
$250 per protective vest 
via NCLM public safety 
grant program. 

F. Act as a liaison between downtown 
churches and businesses to identify 
available parking downtown 

Town Manager   
Public Works Director 

 

Ongoing 
 

• Complete upon 
collaborating with 
downtown churches to 
identify 45 parking spaces 
for business owners’ 
employees, which will free 
up space for downtown 
visitors’ parking. 

1) Work with leaders from downtown 
churches to identify potential parking for 
business employees and visitors. 

Town Manager   
Public Works Director 

 

Feb. 2018 
 

• Complete 

2) Create and distribute maps showing 
parking options in downtown Weaverville. 

Public Works Director Apr. 2019 • To be addressed 

    

Goal 5:  To increase legislative outreach. 

 
Objectives (followed by Action Steps) Responsibility Timeframe Status 

    
A. Engage legislative representatives regarding 

the Town’s needs. 
Town Council 

 Town Manager 
Jan. 2019 
 

• Staff will be proposing 
meetings with local 
legislators in summer of 
2019. 

• Staff recommends that 
Town Council schedule a 
workshop to develop 

30



Town of Weaverville 2018-2021 Strategic Plan 
Quarterly Report:  March 2019 

 

8 
 

legislative goals for 2020 
in the fall of 2019. 

1) Host meetings with legislative 
representatives periodically 
(especially before legislative sessions) 
to learn legislative priorities and to 
educate legislators on Town needs. 

Mayor 
Town Manager 

 

Ongoing 
 

• See above. 

2) Discuss need for collaborative 
development along the Town’s 
corporate limits to ease land use 
conflicts and encourage regional use 
of resources. 

Planning Director 
 Town Council  

Town Manager 
 

Ongoing 
 

 

• Staff agrees that the way 
to achieve this objective is 
to pursue a legislative goal 
to establish an ETJ and/or 
adoption of guidelines 
concerning annexation 
and water allocations. 

B. Consider opportunities for potential 
special legislation as Town needs dictate. 

Town Attorney Ongoing • Staff believes that the re-
establishment of the ETJ 
through legislative action 
is critical for proper land 
use development along 
the Town’s corporate 
borders. 

• Special legislation 
consistent with legislative 
goals should be 
considered and discussed 
with local legislators. 

 

31



TOWN OF WEAVERVILLE 
TOWN COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 

 
DATE OF MEETING: March 18, 2019  

SUBJECT: Proposed Legislation Affecting the ABC Board  

PRESENTER:  Rob Chason 

ATTACHMENT:  Proposed Resolution 
 

 
DESCRIPTION: 

Much attention has been given lately to North Carolina’s controlled system of alcoholic 
beverage sales. There has been discussion of privatizing the system and currently there 
are bills pending in both the NC House of Representatives and the NC Senate that would 
mandate the merger of local ABC boards, such as the Weaverville ABC Board, into a 
consolidated county ABC board.  

The Weaverville ABC Board opposes such action. Rob Chason, the Weaverville ABC Board 
Chairman, will be at the meeting tonight to update Town Council on this and to answer any 
questions that the Mayor and Town Council might have on this subject.   

 

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED: 

If Town Council would like to join the Weaverville ABC Board in its opposition to 
legislation that would privatize the sale of alcoholic beverages in North Carolina and/or 
mandate the merger of the local ABC boards, then it could consider the proposed 
resolution that is attached. 

 

32



RESOLUTION IN SUPPORT OF THE CURRENT  
ABC CONTROL SYSTEM FOR THE SALE OF LIQUOR 

 
 WHEREAS, the citizens of the Town of Weaverville voted to permit the sale of liquor 
through the establishment of an ABC Board, which is a part of the North Carolina’s control 
system for the sale of spirituous liquors;   
 
 WHEREAS, North Carolina is a “control” state and private retail liquor stores are 
prohibited;  
 

WHEREAS, the General Assembly’s nonpartisan Program Evaluation Division (PED) 
was directed to examine whether other systems for alcohol beverage control, including 
privatized systems, are appropriate for North Carolina, specially to include the State of 
Washington, which recently changed its beverage control system from state government 
control of wholesale and retail control of spirituous liquor to a licensure model;  

 
WHEREAS, the PED Report, “Changing How North Carolina Controls Liquor Sales 

Has Operational, Regulatory, and Financial Ramifications”, released on February 11, 2019, 
(1) did not recommend privatization, (2) found that among the southeastern states, NC 
collects the most revenue per gallon, has the lowest outlet density and has the second 
lowest per capita consumption; and (3) the PED expects retail liquor consumption to 
increase by 20% with privatization;   

 
WHEREAS, for fiscal year ending 2018, local ABC boards distributed $430,635,861: 

County-City Distributions $80 million; State General Fund $323 million; Local Alcohol 
Education/Treatment $13 million; Local Law Enforcement $8.8 million; Rehabilitation 
Services $5 million; Operation of ABC Commission/Warehouse $17.7 million; 

 
WHEREAS, North Carolina is unique as it allows communities to vote to establish 

local ABC boards for the sale of liquor in their communities, with liquor profits distributed 
back to those communities, thereby reducing the need to increase local property taxes; 

 
WHEREAS, the citizens of the Town of Weaverville, in voting to permit the 

operation of ABC stores, did not vote to allow spirits to be sold in private retail liquor 
stores and did not vote to allow spirits to be sold at retail outlets where beer and wine are 
sold;   

 
WHEREAS, no State funds are spent to distribute or sell liquor as the state and local 

operation of the ABC system is receipt supported;  
 

WHEREAS, of the 50 states, North Carolina ranks 44th lowest in consumption per 
capita and 7th highest in revenue per capita and NC’s ABC system accomplishes both 
revenue and public health, welfare and safety objectives;    
 

WHEREAS, when Washington State privatized its liquor system the number of retail 
outlets increased from 328 to over 1400, hours of sale/week increased from 73 to 140 

33



hours, and Washington State received only $30.75 million from auctioning off the rights to 
apply for retail spirits permits at 167 stores; 

WHEREAS, privatization will result in a marked increase in the number of outlets, 
longer hours of sale, greater advertising and more promotion and significantly more 
consumption; and the 9,000 outlets in NC that sell beer/wine off-premises could be 
permitted to sell liquor in a privatized system; 

WHEREAS, if enacted, Senate Bill 87 and House Bill 91 would mandate that all local 
ABC boards be merged into a county ABC board; 

 WHEREAS, local revenue from ABC stores operations is important to the Town;  
 
 WHEREAS, local control over the sale of liquor is an important function; 
 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Town of Weaverville, North Carolina, 
acting through its Council Members, that the Town desires to retain North Carolina’s 
current control system for the sale of liquor, in that it believes that privatization of liquor 
will lead to many adverse effects, and also opposes any state mandate to merge local ABC 
boards into a county ABC board.  

    
  ADOPTED this 19th day of March, 2018 in a vote of ____ in favor and ____ opposed. 

 
 
     _____________________________________________ 
     ALLAN P. ROOT, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
_____________________________________________ 
DEREK K. HUNINGHAKE, Town Clerk 
 
 

34



TOWN OF WEAVERVILLE 

TOWN COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 

 

 

Date of Meeting:  March 18, 2019 

Subject:   Dry Ridge Museum Presentation 

Presenter:   Jan Lawrence 

Attachments:   No  

 

Description: 

Jan Lawrence, representing the Dry Ridge Museum, will be in attendance for this meeting to discuss 
the Museum’s activities and plans. 
 

 

 

Council Action Requested: 

No action needed. 

 

 

35



MEETING DATE: 

SUBJECT: 

PRESENTER:  

ATTACHMENTS: 

TOWN OF WEAVERVILLE 
TOWN COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 

Monday, March 18, 2019 

Proposed Rezoning – Red Cole Drive 

Planning Director 

Notice of Public Hearing; Rezoning Application; 
Recommendation of the Planning and Zoning Board; 
Staff Report; Proposed Ordinance

DESCRIPTION/SUMMARY OF REQUEST: 

Tonight’s public hearing is being held on proposed zoning map amendment related to five 
parcels located adjacent to Red Cole Drive known commonly by the parcel identification 
numbers 9743-33-6380, 9743-33-8364, 9743-33-9113, 9743-43-0246, 9743-43-0162. The 
proposed amendment would convert these parcels from their current zoning of C-2 to R-3. 

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED: 

Town Council is asked to take action during its regular Town Council meeting on March 
18, 2019.  An Ordinance Amending the Town's Zoning Map is attached for Town Council's 
consideration.

36



 
 

 
 

NOTICE OF SPECIAL CALLED MEETING  
AND PUBLIC HEARING 

 
Public Notice is hereby given that the Town of Weaverville Town Council will hold a special called 
meeting and public hearing on Monday, March 18, 2019 at 6:45p.m. This meeting will occur within 
Council Chambers at Town Hall located at 30 South Main Street, Weaverville, NC to consider the 
following item: 
 
Proposed Zoning Map Amendment related to five contiguous parcels of land adjacent to Red Cole 
Drive known commonly by the parcel identification numbers 9743-33-6380, 9743-33-8364, 9743-
33-9113, 9743-43-0246, 9743-43-0162. The application calls for the rezoning of each property 
from C-2 to R-3.   
  
If you would like additional information or to review the content related to the Public Hearing you 
may contact Planning Director and Deputy Town Clerk James Eller at 828-484-7002 or 
jeller@weavervillenc.org. 
 
Publication Dates: 3/1/19 and 3/8/19 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

37

mailto:jeller@weavervillenc.org


38



Positive Recommendation

39



40



 

 

Town of Weaverville 
Planning and Zoning Board 

 
 

On Tuesday, March 5, 2019 the Planning and Zoning Board reviewed and unanimously recommended 
to Town Council a proposed rezoning from C-2 to R-3 of five parcels located adjacent to Red Cole Drive 
known commonly by the parcel identification numbers 9743-33-6380, 9743-33-8364, 9743-33-9113, 
9743-43-0246, 9743-43-0162. 
 
It has been found that the proposed rezoning is consistent with the Town’s Comprehensive Plan. The 
Planning and Zoning Board considers approval both reasonable and in the public interest due to the 
residential uses present, the desire of the property owner to further develop vacant parcels for 
residential purposes and finding that an adjacent parcel of land is zoned R-3 alleviating any concerns 
related to spot zoning. 
 
 
 
_______________________________________ 

Doug Theroux  
Chairman, Planning and Zoning Board  
 
 
_______________________________________ 
 
John Chase 
Acting Chairman of the Planning and Zoning Board on March 5, 2019 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

41



Town of Weaverville, North Carolina 
Staff Report: Proposed Rezoning of 
Parcels Located on Red Cole Drive 

Prepared February 2019 

Sources:  Town of Weaverville Code of Ordinances; Comprehensive Land Use Plan 

Page 1 of 1 

Zoning Analysis 

Currently two of the parcels subject to the proposed rezoning are being used for residential purposes 
within the C-2 zoning district. This creates a scenario where the current homes on site are being 
inhabited by a nonconforming use. As such, these uses cannot be enlarged in any way and new 
residential uses on the parcels which are currently uninhabited are expressly prohibited.  

The family has expressed a desire to continue the residential use of the inhabited parcels and 
experience a set of circumstances where the uninhabited parcels may be use for residential purposes. In 
order for this to occur, the proposed rezoning is necessary.  

Staff believes that the identified parcels at the end of Red Cole Drive may be ripe for a rezoning due to 
the following variables: accessed by a private dead end street; the condition of Red Cole Drive is not 
conducive to commercial traffic; the location of the intersection of Red Cole Drive and North Buncombe 
School Road is likely to not be eligible for signalization due to its proximity to the “five points” 
intersection; the nonconforming nature of the underlying residential uses will not permit the present 
use to be replaced and or expanded. 

Comprehensive Land Use Plan Compliance 

When considering compliance with the Town’s Comprehensive Land Use Plan (CLUP), often the analysis 
begins with a consultation of the future land use map (Figure 3-6 on page 3-5). Here it is found that this 
property exists in a gap between the defined areas shown for the future uses of Commercial and Rural. 
These gaps are intentional and are addressed within the CLUP on page 3-2 as follows: 

“When reviewing the map, you will see that there are gaps between defined areas, and that the defined 
areas do not necessarily follow property boundaries. This is purposeful given the uncertainties that exist 
on the ground that cannot be accounted for, and in recognition of the need for flexibility. And so, the 
boundaries and gaps should be viewed as flexible rather than lines in the sand, and the final decisions on 
transitional land use types in these areas should be left to the good judgement of the appointed and 
elected officials that are charged with establishing development policy and regulations in the Town.” 

Given the aforementioned statement, it is the opinion of staff that the proposed rezoning would not 
conflict with the Town’s CLUP. 

42



AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE TOWN’S ZONING MAP –  
REZONING CERTAIN PROPERTIES ON RED CODE DRIVE FROM C-2 TO R-3 

 
 WHEREAS, Town Council has been requested to approve a zoning map amendment 
which would rezone from C-2 to R-3 zoning the five (5) properties adjoining Red Cole Drive 
and bearing the following Buncombe County Parcel Identification Numbers:  9743-33-
6380, 9743-33-8364, 9743-33-9113, 9743-43-0246, and 9743-43-0162; and 

WHEREAS, the Weaverville Planning and Zoning Board reviewed this rezoning 
request on March 5, 2019, found that the requested zone of R-3 is consistent with the 
Town’s Comprehensive Land Use Plan, reasonable and in the public interest in that it is 
consistent with the current residential use of the property and a desire to expand the 
residential use, and unanimously recommends that Council approve the rezoning request; 

WHEREAS, Town Council has, this day, held a public hearing on this rezoning as 
required by law and by Town Code; 

WHEREAS, Town Council finds that the rezoning of the property to R-3 is consistent 
with the Town’s Comprehensive Land Use Plan and Chapter 36 of the Town’s Code of 
Ordinance, is reasonable and in the public interest, and will allow the highest and best use 
of the property and is in the best interest of the public; 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Town Council of the Town of 
Weaverville, North Carolina, that the official Weaverville Zoning Map is hereby amended to 
reflect that the above-referenced properties are zoned as R-3, effective immediately. 

ADOPTED THIS the 18th day of March, 2019, by a vote of ___ in favor and ___ 
against. 

 

_____________________________________________________ 
ALLAN P. ROOT, Mayor 

 
 
ATTESTED BY:     APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
________________________________________________  ____________________________________________ 
DEREK K. HUNINGHAKE, Town Clerk  JENNIFER O. JACKSON, Town Attorney 
 

43



TOWN OF WEAVERVILLE 
TOWN COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 

 
DATE OF MEETING: March 18, 2019  

SUBJECT: Sale of Old Bus Garage 

PRESENTER:  Town Attorney 

ATTACHMENT:  Proposed Agreement for Purchase and Sale of Real Property 
    NCGS 160A-269 
    Summary Table of C-1 Zoning Regulations 

 
DESCRIPTION: 

Town Council has previously expressed a desire to declare as surplus and sell the property 
at 13 Central Avenue which is known as the old bus garage. The Town Attorney has 
worked with the Mayor and Town Manager on this project and proposes that Town 
Council approve a sale’s agreement, solicit offers based on the approved sale’s agreement, 
and utilize the upset bid process to arrive at the highest offer as authorized and required 
by NCGS 160A-269.  

A draft sale’s agreement is attached for Town Council’s consideration. This agreement calls 
for the sale of the property in an as-is condition (Section 4), requires a cash sale without 
loan continency, limits the examination period to only title examination issues (Sections 4 
and 9(a)), and requires the buyer to close within 30 days of Town Council acceptance of 
the offer or forfeit the bid deposit (Sections 12 and 13).  

This property is located in the C-1 zoning district and a summary of what is allowed in the 
C-1 zoning district and what is not is attached for review by Town Council.  Town Council 
has expressed some interest in considering some additional or more stringent restrictions 
on the property. The Planning Director and Town Attorney will be available to provide 
information on the current regulations and to facilitate a conversation regarding 
restrictions.  

In order to expedite the process it is recommended that Town Council propose to accept 
the offer representing the highest bid received by a set deadline (such as April 8th) and 
direct the Town Clerk to advertise that offer and seek upset bids until a 10-day upset bid 
period expires without a new qualified high bid.  

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED: 

Discussion on the sale’s agreement, the adequacy of the C-1 zoning regulations and any 
additional restrictions to be place on the property, and the proposed process to sell this 
surplus property and direction to staff on same. 

44



Page 1 of 4 
 

 

AGREEMENT FOR PURCHASE AND SALE OF REAL PROPERTY 
 

THIS AGREEMENT is by and between __________________________________________________________________, 
a(n) _____________________________________________________________________(“Buyer”), and  
(individual or State of formation and type of entity) 
 
the TOWN OF WEAVERVILLE, a North Carolina municipal corporation (“Seller”). 
 
FOR AND IN CONSIDERATION OF THE MUTUAL PROMISES SET FORTH HEREIN AND OTHER GOOD AND 
VALUABLE CONSIDERATION, THE RECEIPT AND SUFFICIENCY OF WHICH ARE HEREBY ACKNOWLEDGED, THE 
PARTIES HERETO AGREE AS FOLLOWS: 
 
Section 1. Terms and Definitions: The terms listed below shall have the respective meaning given them as set forth adjacent to each 
term.   
  

(a)   “Property”:  shall mean that real property having an address of 13 Central Avenue, Weaverville, NC, 28787, and 
being all of the property in Deed Reference: Book 1054, Page No.316, Buncombe County; consisting of 
approximately 0.19 acre; Plat Reference: Being a portion of Lot 13 of the Old Hotel Property as shown on Plat Book 
or Slide 154 at Page(s) 99, Buncombe County; Parcel Identification: For information purposes the tax parcel number 
of the Property is 9742-27-8468; and together with all buildings and improvements thereon and all fixtures and 
appurtenances thereto.  

 
(b)   “Purchase Price” shall mean the sum of $_____________________, payable on the following terms: 

(1)  “Bid Deposit” shall mean an amount equal to five percent (5%) of the Purchase Price and shall be made 
payable to the Town of Weaverville and presented in the form of a cashiers, certified or other bank check 
with an Agreement signed by Buyer. A Bid Deposit must be submitted for an offer to be complete. 

(2)  Cash, balance of Purchase Price, payable at closing. 
 

(c)  “Closing” shall mean the date and time of recording of the deed and shall occur not later than 30 days from the 
Contract Date. TIME IS OF THE ESSENCE AS TO CLOSING. 

(d) “Contract Date” means the date this Agreement has been fully executed by both Buyer and Seller. 

(e) “Examination Period” means 20 days after the Contract Date. 

(f) “Broker(s)” shall mean: 

  Weaverville Realty (“Listing Agency”), Cindy Ward (“Listing Agent”) 

  Acting as:   Seller’s Agent;         Dual Agent 

  and _________________________________________________________________________ (“Selling Agency”), 

  _____________________________________________________ (“Selling Agent”) 

  Acting as:   Buyer’s Agent;           Seller’s (Sub)Agent;           Dual Agent 

  
(g) “Seller’s Notice Address” shall be as follows: 

Town of Weaverville 
  ATTN: Town Manager 
  PO Box 338 
  Weaverville, NC 28787 

 

(h)  “Buyer’s Notice Address” shall be as follows: 

  ________________________________________ 

  ________________________________________ 

  ________________________________________ 

 
 

45



Page 2 of 4 
 

Section 2. Conditions Prior to Acceptance by Seller: An Agreement signed by the Buyer shall constitute an offer which the Seller 
has the right to reject at any time up until Seller indicates its acceptance by signing this Agreement. Prior to acceptance Seller is 
legally obligated to publish a notice of the offer and seek upset bids in accordance with NCGS 160A-269 (a copy of which is attached 
hereto) until such time as the upset bid procedure is repeated with no further qualifying upset bids being received. This Agreement can 
only be accepted on behalf of the Seller by action of the Weaverville Town Council.  
 
Section 3. Sale of Property and Payment of Purchase Price: Upon acceptance of this Agreement Seller agrees to sell and Buyer 
agrees to buy the Property for the Purchase Price subject to the provisions of this Agreement. 
 
Section 4. As-Is Condition: The Property is being sold as-is and Seller does not warrant the condition of the Property or its fitness for 
any particular purpose. The Seller does not agree to perform any repairs on the Property. The condition of the Property or fitness for 
any particular purpose shall not be used as an excuse or reason for Buyer to avoid closing.  

Section 5. Inspections: Notwithstanding the fact that the Property is being sold as-is as provided in Section 4, Buyer, its agents or 
representatives, at Buyer’s expense and at reasonable times during normal business hours, shall have the right to enter upon the 
Property for the purpose of inspecting, examining, performing soil boring and other testing, and surveying the Property. Buyer shall 
conduct all such on-site inspections, examinations, soil boring and other testing, and surveying of the Property in a good and 
workmanlike manner, shall repair any damage to the Property caused by Buyer's entry and on-site inspections. Upon Seller's request, 
Buyer shall provide to Seller evidence of general liability insurance. Buyer assumes all responsibility for the acts of itself, its agents or 
representatives in exercising its right of inspection and agrees to indemnify and hold Seller harmless from any damages resulting 
therefrom. This indemnification obligation of Buyer shall survive the Closing or earlier termination of this Agreement.  Buyer shall, at 
Buyer’s expense, promptly repair any damage to the Property caused by Buyer's entry and on-site inspections. 
 
Section 6. Proration of Expenses and Payment of Costs: Seller and Buyer agree that all utilities shall be prorated as of the date of 
Closing. Seller shall pay for the preparation of a deed and all other documents necessary to perform Seller’s obligations under this 
Agreement and other conveyance fees or taxes required by law.  Buyer shall pay recording costs, costs of any title search, title 
insurance, survey, the cost of any inspections or investigations undertaken by Buyer under this Agreement and any real property taxes 
that may become due and payable on the property as of the Closing Date or thereafter. Each party shall pay its own attorney’s fees. 
 
Section 7. Evidence of Title: Seller agrees to convey fee simple marketable and insurable title to the Property free and clear of all 
liens, encumbrances and defects of title other than: (a) zoning ordinances affecting the Property, (b) matters of record existing at the 
Contract Date that are not objected to by Buyer prior to the end of the Examination Period (“Permitted Exceptions”); provided that 
Seller shall be required to satisfy, at or prior to Closing, any encumbrances that may be satisfied by the payment of a fixed sum of 
money, such as deeds of trust, mortgages or statutory liens. Seller shall not enter into or record any instrument that affects the Property 
after the Contract Date without the prior written consent of Buyer, which consent shall not be unreasonably withheld, conditioned or 
delayed. 
 
Section 8. Zoning Regulations: Seller and Buyer acknowledge that the Property is zoned C-1 and is subject to all regulations 
applicable to the C-1 zoning district as the same may from time to time be amended by action of the Weaverville Town Council.  
 
Section 9. Conditions: This Agreement and the rights and obligations of the parties under this Agreement are hereby made expressly 
conditioned upon fulfillment (or waiver by Buyer, whether explicit or implied) of the following conditions: 
  
 (a) Title Examination: After the Contract Date, Buyer shall, at Buyer’s expense, cause a title examination to be made of the 
Property before the end of the Examination Period. In the event that such title examination shall show that Seller’s title is not fee 
simple marketable and insurable, subject only to Permitted Exceptions, then Buyer shall promptly notify Seller in writing of all such 
title defects and exceptions, in no case later than the end of the Examination Period, and Seller shall have thirty (30) days to cure said 
noticed defects. If Seller does not cure the defects or objections within thirty (30) days of notice thereof, then Buyer may terminate 
this Agreement and receive a return of the Bid Deposit (notwithstanding that the Examination Period may have expired). If Buyer is to 
purchase title insurance, the insuring company must be licensed to do business in the state in which the Property is located. Title to the 
Property must be insurable at regular rates, subject only to standard exceptions and Permitted Exceptions. 
 
 (b)  Same Condition: If the Property is not in substantially the same condition at Closing as of the date of the offer, 
reasonable wear and tear excepted, then the Buyer may (i) terminate this Agreement and receive a return of the Bid Deposit or (ii) 
proceed to Closing whereupon Buyer shall be entitled to receive, in addition to the Property, any of the Seller's insurance proceeds 
payable on account of the damage or destruction applicable to the Property. 
 
Section 10. Leases:  Seller affirmatively represents and warrants that there are no leases affecting the Property. 
 
Section 11. Risk of Loss/Damage/Repair: Until Closing, the risk of loss or damage to the Property, except as otherwise provided 
herein, shall be borne by Seller. Except as to maintaining the Property in its same condition, Seller shall have no responsibility for the 
repair of the Property, including any improvements, unless the parties hereto agree in writing. 

46



Page 3 of 4 
 

 
Section 12. Bid Deposit: In the event that any of the Conditions listed in Section 9 above are not satisfied, or in the event of a breach 
of this Agreement by Seller, then the Bid Deposit shall be returned to Buyer, but such return shall not affect any other remedies 
available to Buyer for such breach. In the event this offer is accepted and Buyer breaches this Agreement, then the Bid Deposit shall 
be forfeited, but such forfeiture shall not affect any other remedies available to Seller for such breach. IF BUYER CHOOSES NOT 
TO PURCHASE THE PROPERTY FOR ANY REASON OTHER THAN FOR A FAILURE OF A CONDITION LISTED IN 
SECTION 9 ABOVE OR FOR SELLER’S BREACH OF THIS AGREEMENT, THEN BUYER SHALL FORFEIT RETURN 
OF THE BID DEPOSIT. 
 
Section 13. Closing: Closing shall occur not later than 30 days from the Contract Date with TIME BEING OF THE ESSENCE AS 
TO CLOSING. At Closing, Seller shall deliver to Buyer a special warranty deed and other documents customarily executed or 
delivered by a seller in similar transactions, including without limitation, an owner’s affidavit, lien waiver forms, and Buyer shall pay 
to Seller the Purchase Price. At Closing, the Bid Deposit shall be applied as part of the Purchase Price. The Closing shall be held at the 
office of Buyer’s attorney or such other place as the parties hereto may mutually agree. Possession shall be delivered at Closing, 
unless otherwise agreed herein. 
 
Section 14. Notices: Unless otherwise provided herein, all notices and other communications which may be or are required to be 
given or made by any party to the other in connection herewith shall be in writing and shall be deemed to have been properly given 
and received on the date delivered in person or deposited in the United States mail, registered or certified, return receipt requested, to 
the addresses set out in Section 1, or at such other addresses as specified by written notice delivered in accordance herewith. 
 
Section 15. Entire Agreement: This Agreement constitutes the sole and entire agreement among the parties hereto and no 
modification of this Agreement shall be binding unless in writing and signed by all parties hereto.  
 
Section 16. Enforceability:  This Agreement shall become a contract when signed by both Buyer and Seller and such signing is 
communicated to both parties; it being expressly agreed that the notice described in Section 14 is not required for effective 
communication for the purposes of this Section 16.  This Agreement shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the parties, their 
heirs, successors and assigns and their personal representatives. 
 
Section 17. Adverse Information and Compliance with Laws: 
 

(a) Seller Knowledge: Seller has no actual knowledge of (i) condemnation(s) affecting or contemplated with respect to the 
Property; (ii) actions, suits or proceedings pending or threatened against the Property; (iii) changes contemplated in any applicable 
laws, ordinances or restrictions affecting the Property; or (iv) governmental special assessments, either pending or confirmed, for 
sidewalk, paving, water, sewer, or other improvements on or adjoining the Property, and no pending or confirmed owners’ association 
special assessments.  
 
 (b)  Compliance: To Seller’s actual knowledge, (i) Seller has complied with all applicable laws, ordinances, regulations, 
statutes, rules and restrictions pertaining to or affecting the Property; (ii) performance of the Agreement will not result in the breach 
of, constitute any default under or result in the imposition of any lien or encumbrance upon the Property under any agreement or other 
instrument to which Seller is a party or by which Seller or the Property is bound; and (iii) there are no legal actions, suits or other legal 
or administrative proceedings pending or threatened against the Property, and Seller is not aware of any facts which might result in 
any such action, suit or other proceeding. 
 
Section 18. Survival of Representations and Warranties: All representations, warranties, covenants and agreements made by the 
parties hereto shall survive the Closing and delivery of the deed.  Seller shall, at or within six (6) months after the Closing, and 
without further consideration, execute, acknowledge and deliver to Buyer such other documents and instruments, and take such other 
action as Buyer may reasonably request or as may be necessary to more effectively transfer to Buyer the Property described herein in 
accordance with this Agreement. 
 
Section 19.  Brokers:  Except as expressly provided herein, Buyer and Seller agree to indemnify and hold each other harmless from 
any and all claims of brokers, consultants or real estate agents by, through or under the indemnifying party for fees or commissions 
arising out of the sale of the Property to Buyer.  Buyer and Seller represent and warrant to each other that: (i) except as to the Brokers 
designated under Section 1 of this Agreement, they have not employed nor engaged any brokers, consultants or real estate agents to be 
involved in this transaction and (ii) that the compensation of the Brokers is established by and shall be governed by separate 
agreements entered into as amongst the Brokers, the Buyer and/or the Seller. 
 
Section 20. Applicable Law: This Agreement shall be construed under the laws of the state of North Carolina. 
 
Section 21.  Assignment:  This Agreement is not assignable. 
 

47



Page 4 of 4 
                               

 

Section 22.  Authority: Each signatory to this Agreement represents and warrants that he or she has full authority to sign this 
Agreement and such instruments as may be necessary to effectuate any transaction contemplated by this Agreement on behalf of the 
party for whom he or she signs and that his or her signature binds such party.   
 
 
BUYER:        
  
Individual        
    
______________________________________________   
 
Date: _________________________________________   
 
______________________________________________   
 
Date: _________________________________________   
 
 
Business Entity        
 
______________________________________________   TOWN OF WEAVERVILLE, NC 
                  (Name of Entity)                     
By:___________________________________________  By:_________________________________________ 
  
Name: _______________________________________  Name: _______________________________________ 
 
Title:__________________________________________  Title:________________________________________ 
 
Date: _________________________________________  Date: ________________________________________ 
 
 
The undersigned hereby acknowledges receipt of the Bid Deposit set forth herein and agrees to hold said Bid Deposit in 
accordance with the terms hereof. 
 
TOWN OF WEAVERVILLE, NC 

 
By:_________________________________________________   

Date: __________________ 

48



3/12/2019 § 160A-269

https://www.ncleg.net/enactedlegislation/statutes/html/bysection/chapter_160a/gs_160a-269.html 1/1

§ 160A-269.  Negotiated offer, advertisement, and upset bids.
A city may receive, solicit, or negotiate an offer to purchase property and advertise it for upset bids. When an

offer is made and the council proposes to accept it, the council shall require the offeror to deposit five percent
(5%) of his bid with the city clerk, and shall publish a notice of the offer. The notice shall contain a general
description of the property, the amount and terms of the offer, and a notice that within 10 days any person may
raise the bid by not less than ten percent (10%) of the first one thousand dollars ($1,000) and five percent (5%)
of the remainder. When a bid is raised, the bidder shall deposit with the city clerk five percent (5%) of the
increased bid, and the clerk shall readvertise the offer at the increased bid. This procedure shall be repeated until
no further qualifying upset bids are received, at which time the council may accept the offer and sell the property
to the highest bidder. The council may at any time reject any and all offers. (1971, c. 698, s. 1; 1979, 2nd Sess.,
c. 1247, s. 25.)

49



C-
1 

Zo
ni

ng
 R

eg
ul

at
io

ns
 –

 S
um

m
ar

y 
Ta

bl
e 

U
se

 T
yp

e 
U

se
 

Pe
rm

it
te

d 
Pe

rm
it

te
d 

W
it

h 
St

an
da

rd
s 

Pe
rm

it
te

d 
as

 
CZ

D
  

Pr
oh

ib
it

ed
 

Re
si

de
nt

ia
l 

Us
es

 
Re

si
de

nt
ia

l U
se

s  
 

 
 

X 
Re

si
de

nt
ia

l U
se

 w
ith

 M
ix

ed
 U

se
 

 
 

X 
 

Be
d 

&
 B

re
ak

fa
st

 
 

 
 

X 
H

ot
el

, M
ot

el
, I

nn
 

 
 

X 
 

Of
fic

e 
Us

es
 a

nd
  

Se
rv

ic
es

 
Ve

te
ri

na
ry

 C
lin

ic
 

X 
 

 
 

Ke
nn

el
 

 
 

 
X 

Au
to

m
at

ed
 T

el
le

r M
ac

hi
ne

s 
X 

 
 

 
Ba

nk
s, 

Cr
ed

it 
Un

io
ns

, F
in

an
ci

al
 

Se
rv

ic
es

; d
ri

ve
-t

hr
us

 re
gu

la
te

d 
 

X 
 

 

Au
to

m
ob

ile
 G

as
 S

ta
tio

n 
X 

 
 

 
Au

to
m

ob
ile

 R
ep

ai
r 

 
X 

 
 

Au
to

m
ob

ile
 A

ut
o 

Bo
dy

 S
ho

ps
 

 
 

 
X 

Ch
ild

 C
ar

e 
Ce

nt
er

 
 

 
X 

 
Gr

ou
p 

Ca
re

 F
ac

ili
ty

 
 

 
X 

 
Eq

ui
pm

en
t R

en
ta

l 
 

 
 

X 
Go

ve
rn

m
en

t S
er

vi
ce

s 
 

 
X 

 
Co

m
m

un
ity

 S
er

vi
ce

 O
rg

an
iz

at
io

n 
 

 
 

X 
Po

st
 O

ffi
ce

 
 

 
 

X 
Pr

of
es

si
on

al
 S

er
vi

ce
s –

  
Ac

co
un

tin
g,

 L
aw

, R
ea

lto
r, 

et
c. 

X 
 

 
 

M
ed

ic
al

 C
lin

ic
, U

rg
en

t C
ar

e,
 H

os
pi

ta
l 

 
 

 
X 

M
ed

ic
al

 O
ffi

ce
 

X 
 

 
 

Pe
rs

on
al

 S
er

vi
ce

s –
 H

ai
r s

al
on

, e
tc

. 
X 

 
 

 
Ta

tt
oo

 P
ar

lo
r 

 
 

 
X 

Fu
ne

ra
l H

om
e 

X 
 

 
 

Ar
t, 

Da
nc

e,
 M

ar
tia

l A
rt

s, 
M

us
ic

 S
tu

di
o 

X 
 

 
 

50



C-
1 

Zo
ni

ng
 R

eg
ul

at
io

ns
 –

 S
um

m
ar

y 
Ta

bl
e 

U
se

 T
yp

e 
U

se
 

Pe
rm

it
te

d 
Pe

rm
it

te
d 

W
it

h 
St

an
da

rd
s 

Pe
rm

it
te

d 
as

 
CZ

D
  

Pr
oh

ib
it

ed
 

Re
ta

il 
an

d 
Re

st
au

ra
nt

s 
Ge

ne
ra

l r
et

ai
l u

nd
er

 1
0,

00
0 

sq
ft

1  
w

ith
ou

t d
ri

ve
-t

hr
us

 
X 

 
 

 

Ge
ne

ra
l r

et
ai

l w
ith

 d
ri

ve
-t

hr
us

 
 

 
 

X 
AB

C 
Sa

le
s S

to
re

s 
X 

 
 

X 
Au

to
/M

ec
ha

ni
ca

l P
ar

ts
 S

to
re

s 
X 

 
 

 
M

ul
ti-

Te
na

nt
 D

ev
el

op
m

en
t 

 
 

X 
 

Ve
hi

cl
e/

Eq
ui

pm
en

t S
al

es
 –

 In
do

or
 

X 
 

 
 

Ve
hi

cl
e/

Eq
ui

pm
en

t S
al

es
 –

 O
ut

do
or

 
 

 
 

X 
Ac

ce
ss

or
y 

re
ta

il 
X 

 
 

 
Pa

w
n 

sh
op

s 
 

 
 

X 
Re

st
au

ra
nt

s w
ith

ou
t d

ri
ve

-t
hr

us
 

X 
 

 
 

Re
st

au
ra

nt
s w

ith
 d

ri
ve

-t
hr

us
 

 
 

 
X 

Ba
rs

/T
av

er
ns

/N
ig

ht
 C

lu
bs

 
X 

 
 

 
M

ix
ed

 U
se

s 
M

ix
ed

 U
se

 B
ui

ld
in

g/
St

ru
ct

ur
es

 
 

 
X 

 
En

te
rt

ai
nm

en
t, 

Re
cr

ea
tio

na
l 

Us
es

 

Am
us

em
en

ts
 –

 In
do

or
 

X 
 

 
 

Am
us

em
en

ts
 –

 O
ut

do
or

 
 

 
 

X 
Re

cr
ea

tio
na

l F
ac

ili
tie

s –
 In

do
or

 
X 

 
 

 
Re

cr
ea

tio
na

l F
ac

ili
tie

s -
 O

ut
do

or
 

 
X 

 
 

Ev
en

t C
en

te
r 

 
 

X 
 

Cu
ltu

ra
l o

r C
om

m
un

ity
 F

ac
ili

ty
 

X 
 

 
 

M
ot

io
n 

Pi
ct

ur
e 

Th
ea

tr
e 

 
 

 
X 

Te
m

po
ra

ry
 

Us
es

 
Ge

ne
ra

l T
em

po
ra

ry
 U

se
 

 
X 

 
 

Fa
rm

er
s M

ar
ke

t 
 

X 
 

 
M

ob
ile

 F
oo

d 
Ve

nd
or

 
 

X 
 

 
 

 

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

    
    

1  T
he

 O
ld

 B
us

 G
ar

ag
e 

Bu
ild

in
g 

is
 u

nd
er

 1
0,

00
0 

sq
ua

re
 fe

et
. 

51



C-
1 

Zo
ni

ng
 R

eg
ul

at
io

ns
 –

 S
um

m
ar

y 
Ta

bl
e 

M
an

uf
ac

tu
ri

ng
, 

W
ho

le
sa

le
, 

St
or

ag
e 

Us
es

 

N
ei

gh
bo

rh
oo

d 
M

an
uf

ac
tu

ri
ng

 
X 

 
 

 
Li

gh
t a

nd
 H

ea
vy

 M
an

uf
ac

tu
ri

ng
 

 
 

 
X 

M
et

al
 F

ab
ri

ca
tio

n,
 M

ac
hi

ne
 o

r 
W

el
di

ng
 S

ho
p,

 A
ut

o 
Bo

dy
 R

ep
ai

r 
 

 
 

X 

W
ar

eh
ou

si
ng

 a
nd

 D
is

tr
ib

ut
io

n 
 

 
 

X 
M

in
i-W

ar
eh

ou
se

s 
 

 
 

X 
Ou

td
oo

r S
to

ra
ge

 Y
ar

ds
 

 
 

 
X 

Ci
vi

c, 
In

st
itu

tio
na

l 
Us

es
 

Ce
m

et
er

ie
s 

 
 

 
X 

Pu
bl

ic
 S

af
et

y 
Fa

ci
lit

ie
s 

 
 

X 
 

Re
lig

io
us

 In
st

itu
tio

ns
 

 
 

X 
 

Sc
ho

ol
s 

 
 

X 
 

M
is

ce
lla

ne
ou

s 
Us

es
 

Ac
ce

ss
or

y 
St

ru
ct

ur
es

 
X 

 
 

 
Ad

ul
t E

st
ab

lis
hm

en
ts

 
 

 
 

X 
N

ei
gh

bo
rh

oo
d 

Ag
ri

cu
ltu

re
 

 
X 

 
 

Co
m

m
er

ci
al

 A
gr

ic
ul

tu
re

 
 

X 
 

 
Cr

em
at

or
ie

s 
 

 
 

X 
W

ir
el

es
s T

el
ec

om
m

un
ic

at
io

ns
 –

 
St

ea
lth

 
 

X 
 

 

W
ir

el
es

s T
el

ec
om

m
un

ic
at

io
ns

 –
 

To
w

er
 

 
 

 
X 

Ev
en

t C
en

te
r 

 
 

X 
 

Ta
tt

oo
 P

ar
lo

rs
 

 
 

 
X 

Ga
m

in
g 

Te
rm

in
al

s 
 

 
 

X 
M

ix
ed

 U
se

 B
ui

ld
in

gs
 o

r S
tr

uc
tu

re
s 

 
 

X 
 

N
ox

io
us

 U
se

s 
 

 
 

X 
 

52



TOWN OF WEAVERVILLE 

TOWN COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 

 

DATE OF MEETING:  March 18, 2019  

SUBJECT: Discussion of Delegated Policies within the Personnel Policy 
 
PRESENTER:   Town Manager 
 
ATTACHMENTS:  Excerpts from Personnel Policy 
  
DESCRIPTION: 

Town Council has completed its systematic review of the separate articles comprising 
the Town’s Personnel Policy and staff is in the process of consolidating all of that work 
in the hopes of bringing the whole document back to Town Council for consideration 
and adoption in April.  

Before that is done, staff wants to remind the Mayor and Town Council that the 
Personnel Policy directs the Town Manager to establish certain policies including the 
following:  

• Use of Town Vehicles and Equipment 
• Internet and Social Media Use 
• Substance Abuse 

In addition, the Workplace Violence Prevention section states that “The Town shall 
adopt a policy concerning workplace violence prevention which contains guidelines 
and procedures to deal with intimidation, harassment or other threats of or actual 
violence that may occur on-site during work-related activities.”   

The Town Manager would like for Town Council to reconsider the delegation of these 
policies and allow staff, with Town Council input, to draft these policies for inclusion in 
the Personnel Policy and ultimately adoption by Town Council.  

 
COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED:    

Town Council discussion on the delegation of these policies and, as appropriate, 
discussion of concepts and substance for the Town Manager to include in the drafting of 
the policies to be brought back to Town Council. 

  

53



Article V - Conditions of Employment 

Section 12.  Internet and Social Media Use 

The use of the Town’s information technology, including its computer systems, all forms of 
internet and intranet access, and email, is critical to accomplishing the Town’s goals and 
providing governmental services. Brief and occasional personal use of email or the internet 
is acceptable as long as it is not excessive or inappropriate, occurs during personal time 
and does not result in expense or harm to the Town.  

The Town has a social media presence in order to provide information to citizens on 
governmental activities and to better connect with the community. The Town respects the 
rights of employees to use blogs and social media sites as a medium of self-expression and 
public conversation and does not discriminate against employees who use these media for 
personal interest and affiliations or other lawful purposes. Employees are expected to act 
responsibly and exercise good judgment when interacting with social media resources, 
recognizing that personal and professional lives can easily be blurred.  

The Town Manager shall establish a separate policy in which guidelines are provided to 
employees regarding appropriate internet and social media use. Employees are expected to 
follow the guidelines and policies adopted by the Town Manager concerning internet use 
and social media. 

 

Section 13.  Drug-Free Workplace 

All aspects of society are harmed by illicit drug use, with the workplace being especially 
impacted. Providing a positive work environment is a high priority for the Town and, to 
that end, the Town provides a drug-free workplace for all employees. The Town Manager 
shall establish policies and procedures related to employee substance abuse in order to 
ensure the safety and well-being of citizens and employees, and to comply with any federal, 
state or other laws and regulations. Employees are expected to follow the guidelines, 
policies and procedures adopted by the Town Manager. 

 

Section 15.  Workplace Violence Prevention 

The Town is committed to preventing workplace violence and to maintaining a safe work 
environment. Behavior that is intended or likely to be perceived as intending to create a 
fear of bodily harm, actual physical injury, or damage to Town property will not be 
tolerated. Those who engage in such behaviors will be held accountable and dealt with in a 
manner consistent with maintaining a violence-free workplace. The Town shall adopt a 
policy concerning workplace violence prevention which contains guidelines and 
procedures to deal with intimidation, harassment or other threats of or actual violence that 
may occur on-site during work-related activities. 

 
 

54



Section 17.  Use of Town Vehicles and Equipment 

Operation of a Town vehicle is both a privilege and a responsibility. The Town Manager 
shall establish and maintain a procedure relating to the requirements of employees who 
operate town vehicles and ensure that employees are provided with a copy and training 
regarding specifics within the procedures and updates as changes to the procedures are 
made. The Town Manager may also establish procedures regarding operation and use of 
other Town equipment. Employees are expected to follow the guidelines, policies and 
procedures adopted by the Town Manager. 

Employees are required to turn in town equipment when they leave town employment or 
at the request of the Town Manager. The Town has the authority to make deductions from 
final pay checks for any town equipment not returned. 

 

55



TOWN OF WEAVERVILLE 
TOWN COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 

 

MEETING DATE:  March 18, 2019  

SUBJECT: Annexation Petition and Initial Zoning Request for Riverside 
Stump Dump located at 135 Monticello Road 

PRESENTER:   Town Clerk 

ATTACHMENTS: Voluntary Annexation Petition and Data Sheet 
 Certificate of Authority 
 Property Tax Map Showing Property to be Annexed 
    Application for Initial Zoning of R-12  
    Proposed Resolution 
 
DESCRIPTION/SUMMARY OF REQUEST:  

The owner of the property located at 135 Monticello Road, Riverside Stump Dump, Inc., has 
submitted a voluntary annexation petition for the 19.4 acres of land currently being used as 
the Riverside Stump Dump. This property is contiguous to the primary municipal limits of 
the Town. Together with this application Riverside Stump Dump, Inc., has also submitted a 
zoning map amendment application requesting an initial zoning of R-12 if the property is to 
be annexed into the Town’s municipal limits. 

If annexed, the active use on the property, the Riverside Stump Dump, would be allowed to 
continue as a nonconforming use; however, it appears that the property owner or 
development will seek development approvals from the Town in order to develop the 
property as a multifamily residential development as allowed under R-12 zoning.  

Should Town Council wish to consider annexation of this property, the first steps are to 
request that the Town Clerk investigate the sufficiency of the annexation petition and to 
send the initial zoning request to the Planning and Zoning Board for review and 
recommendation. A resolution to that effect is attached.  

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED: 

Town Council is requested to adopt the attached resolution which (1) directs the Town 
Clerk to investigate the sufficiency of the annexation petition and submit a Certificate of 
Sufficiency to Town Council at its regular meeting in April 2019, and (2) directs the 
Town Planner to place the Application for a Zoning Map Amendment on the Planning 
and Zoning Board’s next agenda so that the requested zoning district can be reviewed 
for consistency with the Town’s Comprehensive Land Use Plan and a recommendation 
on same can be forwarded back to Town Council at such time as a public hearing is held 
on the matter. A proposed motion is as follows: 

I move that we adopt the proposed resolution concerning the annexation petition 
and initial zoning submitted for the property located at 135 Monticello Road 

56



RESOLUTION DIRECTING THE CLERK TO INVESTIGATE THE SUFFICIENCY  
OF A VOLUNTARY ANNEXATION PETITION AND SENDING THE ASSOCIATED INITIAL 

ZONING REQUEST TO THE PLANNING AND ZONING BOARD  
FOR REVIEW AND RECOMMENDATION 

 
 WHEREAS, a petition requesting annexation of that property located at 135 
Monticello Road, Weaverville, North Carolina, which is commonly known as the Riverside 
Stump Dump, was received from Riverside Stump Dump, Inc., on February 27, 2019, by the 
Town of Weaverville; and 
 
 WHEREAS, N.C. Gen. Stat. § 160A-31 provides that the sufficiency of the petition 
shall be investigated by the Town Clerk before further annexation proceedings may take 
place; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Town of Weaverville is also in receipt of an application for a zoning 
map amendment request an R-12 zoning classification for the property to be annexed; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Town Council of the Town of Weaverville deems it advisable to 
proceed in response to this request for annexation and initial zoning; 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Town Council of the Town of 
Weaverville that: 
 

1. The Town Clerk is hereby directed to investigate the sufficiency of the above-
reference petition and to certify to Town Council the result of his investigation; 
 

2. That the Town Planner is directed to place the application for initial zoning of R-12 
on the Town’s Planning and Zoning Board’s next agenda so that the Board can 
review the requested zoning for consistency with the Town’s Comprehensive Land 
Use Plan and forward a recommendation to Town Council prior to or at a public 
hearing that may subsequently be held on this matter. 

 
 

THIS the 18th day of March, 2019. 
 
 

_________________________________________________________ 
ALLAN P. ROOT, Mayor 

 
 

ATTESTED BY: 
 
 

_________________________________________________________ 
DEREK HUNINGHAKE, Town Clerk 
 

57



Riv
ers

ide
 St

um
p D

um
p

NC
CG

IA

Ma
rch

 11
, 2

01
9

0
0.1

5
0.3

0.0
75

mi

0
0.2

0.4
0.1

km

1:9
,02

8

  

58



59



60



61



62



63



64



65



66



67



68



69



70



71



72



73



74


	PUBLIC HEARING - Red Cole Drive Rezoning
	Public Hearing on Proposed Rezoning of 5 Parcels Adjacent to Red Cole Drive.pdf
	Public Notice - Town Council - Red Cole Rezoning - 3.18.19.pdf
	Rezoning Application and Map - Red Cole Drive.pdf
	SKM_C364e19021910241.pdf
	2019-02-19 09-02.pdf

	Red Cole Drive Rezoning.pdf
	Red Cole Rezoning Staff Report.pdf

	February 12 2019 - Joint Meeting between PZB and TC - with jj revisions (1)
	February 25 2019 -Town Council Special Called Meeting Minutes - with jj revisions
	Monthly Tax Report for 3-12-19
	Sheet1 (2)

	Tax Release - Jeffrey Banks - March 2019
	Earth Day-Arbor Day Proclamations Agenda Item
	Agenda Item Summary-Earth and Arbor Days
	Earth Day Proclamation - 2019
	arbor day 2019 proclamation

	CLUP Project - Staff Update - March 2019
	TM March Report with strategic plan qtrly report
	TM Report March 2019
	Approved 2018-2021 Strategic Plan Quarterly Report - March 2019

	Proposed Legislation Affecting ABC Board - March 2019
	Agenda Item-Dry Ridge Museum
	ACTION ITEM - Red Cole Drive Rezoning
	Proposed Rezoning of 5 Parcels Adjacent to Red Cole Drive.pdf
	Public Notice - Town Council - Red Cole Rezoning - 3.18.19.pdf
	Rezoning Application and Map - Red Cole Drive.pdf
	SKM_C364e19021910241.pdf
	2019-02-19 09-02.pdf

	Red Cole Drive Rezoning.pdf
	Red Cole Rezoning Staff Report.pdf

	Sale of Old Bus Garage - March 2019
	Discussion Concerning Delegated Policies within the Personnel Policy - March 2019
	Article V - Conditions of Employment
	Section 12.  Internet and Social Media Use
	Section 13.  Drug-Free Workplace
	Section 15.  Workplace Violence Prevention
	Section 17.  Use of Town Vehicles and Equipment

	Annexation Petition and Initial Zoning Request - Riverside Stump Dump - 135 Monticello Road - March 2019
	Quarterly Report - Water and Public Works

	Mayor of the City of:                             Al Root
	do hereby proclaim:               Weaverville, North Carolina
	as:                    Friday, April 26, 2019
	and I urge all:                   Weaverville
	day of:                   18th
	undefined:      March, 2019
	Mayor: 


